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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE MIDDLE DISTRICT OF FLORIDA
TAMPA DIVISION

FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION,

Plaintiff, No. 8:13-cv-123-T-33EAJ
V.

INNOVATIVE WEALTH BUILDERS, INC.;
CARLY JANENE PELLAND, a/k/a

CARLY ZURITA; TAMARA DAWN JOHNSON,;
SHERYL LEIGH LOPEZ; and INDEPENDANT
RESOURCES NETWORK CORP. also d/b/a IRN
PAYMENT SYSTEMS,

Defendants.
/

STIPULATED ORDER FOR PERMANENT INJUNCTION AND
FINAL JUDGMENT AS TO INNOVAT IVE WEALTH BUILDERS, INC.;
CARLY JANENE PELLAND, a/k/a CARLY ZURITA;
TAMARA DAWN JOHNSON; AND SHERYL LEIGH LOPEZ

Plaintiff Federal Trade Commission (“Conssion” or “FTC”) filed its Complaint for a
Permanent Injunction and Other Equitable Redigfsuant to Sections 13(b) and 19 of the
Federal Trade Commission Act (“FTC Act”), 153JC. 88 53(b) and 57b, and the Telemarketing
and Consumer Fraud and Abuse Prevention Act (“Telemarketing Act”), 15 U.S.C. 88 6101-
6108, to obtain temporary, preliminary, andrpanent injunctive relief, rescission or
reformation of contracts, restiton, disgorgement of ill-gotten ges, and other equitable relief
for Defendants’ acts or practicesviolation of Section 5(a) ahe FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45(a),
and in violation of the FTC’s Trade Regiiten Rule entitled “Telemarketing Sales Rule”
(“TSR”), 16 C.F.R. Part 310. Plaintiff and Daf#ants Innovative WealtBuilders, Inc.; Carly

Janene Pelland a/k/a Carly Zurita; Tamara Daaimson; and Sheryl Igh Lopez (“Stipulating
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Defendants”), have agreed to entry of tHip@ated Final Judgment and Order for Permanent
Injunction (“Order”) by this Courin order to resolve all claimegainst Stipulating Defendants in
this action. Plaintiff and Stipating Defendants have consente@mntry of this Order without
trial or adjudication of any issuof law or fact herein.

NOW THEREFORE, Plaintiff and Stipudting Defendants, having requested the Court
to enter this Order, and ti@ourt having considered the Ordeached between the partieg]S
HEREBY ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED as follows:

FINDINGS

1. This is an action by the @onission instituted undereStions 13(b) and 19 of the
FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. 88 53(b) and 57b, the Telemarketing Act, 15 U.S.C. 88 6101-6108, and the
TSR, 16 C.F.R. Part 310. Pursuant to theséi@ecof the FTC Act and the Telemarketing Act,
the Commission has the authoritysteek the relief contained herein.

2. The Commission’s Complaint stateslam upon which relief may be granted
under Sections 5(a), 13(b)ych19 of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. 88 45(a), 53(b), and 57b, and
Section 6(b) of the Telemarketing Act, 15 U.S.C. § 6105(b).

3. This Court has jurisdiction over the sedtjmatter of this case and personal
jurisdiction over the ®pulating Defendants.

4. Venue, process, and sewiof process are proper.

5. The activities of Stipulating Defendaras, alleged in the Complaint, are “in or
affecting commerce” as “commerce” is definediection 4 of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 44.

6. Stipulating Defendants neither admit deny any of the allegations set forth in
the Commission’s Complaint, except as specificsifited in this Order. Only for purposes of

this action, Stipulating Defendants admit thets necessary totablish jurisdiction.



7. Stipulating Defendants waive: (a) all righdsseek judiciateview or otherwise
challenge or contest the validity thfis Order; (b) any claim thainy of them may have against
the Commission, its employees, representativeagents; (c) all claims under the Equal Access
to Justice Act, 28 U.S.C. § 24185 amended by Pub. L. 104-121, 110 Stat. 847, 863-64 (1996);
and (d) any rights to attorneyfses that may arise under saidysion of law. The Commission
and Stipulating Defendants shall each bear their costs and attorneyfses incurred in this
action.

8. This Order is in addition to, and not indief, any other civil or criminal remedies
that may be provided by law.

9. Entry of this Order is in the public interest.

DEFINITIONS

For purposes of this Order, tf@lowing definitions shall apply:
1. “Asset or “Assets means any legal or equitable irgst in, right to, or claim to,

any real or personal propertgcluding, but not limited to, “goods“instruments,” “equipment,”

” o

“fixtures,” “general intangibles,” “inventory,” ‘fltecks,” or “notes,” (as these terms are defined
in the Uniform Commercial Code), lines of credihattels, leaseholds, contracts, mail or other
deliveries, shares of stock, lists of consumames, accounts, credits, premises, receivables,
funds, and all cash, wherever located.
2. “Assisting Others includes, but is not limited to:
A. performingcustomeiservicefunctions, including, but not limited to,
receiving or responding to consumer complaints;

B. formulatingor providing, or arranging for thesrmulation or provision of,

any advertising or marketing material, inding, but not limitedo, any telephone sales



script, direct mail solicitatin, or the design, text, or useimages of any Internet
website, email, or otherlectronic communication;

C. formulatingor providing, or arranging for thiermulation or provision of,
any marketing support material or serviceluding but not limited to, web or Internet
Protocol addresses or domain name regfisin for any Internet websites, affiliate

marketing services, or media placement services;

D. providing names of, or assistingtire generation of, potential customers;
E. performingmarketing billing, or payment services of any kind; and
F. acting or serving as an owneiffjaer, director, manageor principal of

any entity.

3. “Corporate Defendant or “Receivership Defendarit means Innovative Wealth

Builders, Inc., and its successors and assignseliss any subsidiaries, and any fictitious
business entities or business names created or used by this entity.

4, “Debt Relief Product or Servicé means any product, service, plan or program
represented, directly or by impdition, to renegotiate, settle, or in any way alter the terms of
payment or other terms of the debt betweenradheand one or more unseed creditors or debt
collectors, including, but not limitet, a reduction in the balandeterest rate, or fees owed by
a Person to an unsecured creditor or debt collector.

5. “Defendant” means Innovative Wealth Buildetsc.; Independant Resources
Network Corp. also d/b/a IRN Payment Sysse@arly Janene Pelland a/k/a Carly Zurita;
Tamara Dawn Johnson; and Sheryl Leigh Lmypedividually, colletively, or in any
combination.

6. “Document or “Documents means any materials listed in Federal Rule of Civil



Procedure 34(a) and includes writings, drawjrggaphs, charts, photographs, audio and video
recordings, computer records, and other datapilations from which information can be
obtained and translated, if necagsato reasonably usablerfa through detection devices. A
draft or nonidentical copy is a separB@cument within the meaning of the term.

7. “Financial Institution ” means any bank, savings and loan institution, credit
union, or any financial depository of any#i including, but not limite to, any brokerage
house, trustee, broker-dealescrow agent, titte companggmmaodity trading company, or
precious metal dealer.

8. “Financial Related Product or Servicé means any product or service
represented, directly or by implication, to:

A. provide any consumer, arrange &ory consumer to receive, or assist any
consumer in receiving, credit, ki or stored value cards;

B. improve, or arrange to improve, any consumer’s credit record, credit
history, or credit rating;

C. provide advice or assistance to aogisumer with regard to any activity or
service the purpose of which is to improveoasumer’s credit record, credit history, or
credit rating;

D. provide any consumer, arrange & consumer to receive, or assist any
consumer in receiving, a loam other extension of credit;

E. provide any consumer, arrangedaly consumer to receive, or assist any
consumer in receiving any service reggnted, expressly or by implication, to
renegotiate, settle, or in amyay alter the terms of paymemtt other terms of the debt

between a consumer and one or more seauresltors, servicers, or debt collectors.



9. “Individual Defendants” means Carly Janene Pelland a/k/a Carly Zurita; Tamara
Dawn Johnson; and Sheryl Leigh Lopez, agdvhatever other names each may be known.

10. “Persori means a natural person, an orgaticzaor other legleentity, including
a corporation, partnership, sqieoprietorship, limited liality company, association,
cooperative, or any other group or combination acting as an entity.

11. “Plaintiff ” means the Federal Trade Comnssion (“Commission” or “FTC").

12. “Stipulating Defendants means Innovative Wealth Builders, Inc.; Carly Janene
Pelland a/k/a Carly Zurita; Tamara Dawn Johnsmodt Sheryl Leigh Lopez; and their successors
and assigns, as well as any subsidiaries, andi@iipus business erites or business names
created or used by thesdigas, or any of them.

13. “Telemarketing” means any plan, program, or campaign which is conducted to
induce the purchase of goodsservices, or a charitable cabution, by use of one or more
telephones, and which involves a telephone calktiadr or not covered by the Telemarketing
Sales Rule.

l.

PERMANENT BAN ON TELEMARKETING

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED that Stipulating Defendantahether acting directly
or through any Person, trust, corporation, menghip, limited liabilitycompany, subsidiary,
division, or other device, are peanently restrained and enjoined from participating in
Telemarketing, or assisting others engaged in Telemarketing.

I.

PERMANENT BAN ON MARKETING DEBT RELIEF PRODUCTS OR SERVICES

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Stipulating Defendantahether acting directly or



through any Person, trust, corporation, paghip, limited liabilitycompany, subsidiary,
division, or other device, are peamently restrained and enjoinfdm engaging in, participating
in, or assisting others inghadvertising, marketing, promoti, offering for sale, sale, or
distribution of any Debt Reef Product or Service.

[l

PROHIBITED PRACTICES RELATING TO
FINANCIAL RELATED PRODUCTS OR SERVICES

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Stipulating Defendants, and their officers, agents,
servants, employees, attorneysd all other Persons in active cant or participation with any
of them, who receive actual nci of this Order by personal se® or otherwise, whether acting
directly or through any trust, corporationytpership, limited liabilitycompany, subsidiary,
division, or other device, inotinection with the advertising, mk&ting, promotion, offering for
sale, or sale of any Financial IRed Product or Service, are pamently restrained and enjoined
from:

A. Misrepresentin@r assisting others in misregsenting, expressly or by
implication, any material facincluding but not limited to:

1. The terms or rates that are avaaaor any loan or other extension of
credit, including but not limited to:

a. closingcostsor otherfees;

b. the payment schedule, the monthly payment amount(s), or other
payment terms, or whether there isadloon payment; interest rate(s), annual
percentage rate(s), or finance chatge;loan amount, the amount of credit, the
draw amount, or outstanding balance; the loan term, the draw period, or maturity;

or any other term of credit;



C. the savings associated with the credit;

d. the amount of cash to belissed to the borrower out of the
proceeds, or the amount of cash to beuwlised on behalf of the borrower to any
third party;

e. whether the payment of the minimum amount specified each
month covers both interest and princi@ald whether the credit has or can result
in negative amortization;

f. that the credit does not haagrepayment penalty or that no
prepayment penalty and/or other feesasts will be incurred if the consumer
subsequently refinances; and

g. thattheinterestrate(s) or annual percentarge(s) are fixed rather
than adjustable or adjustable rather than fixed;

2. That any Person can improve angsaamer’s credit record, credit history,
or credit rating by permanently removing niéégainformation from the consumer’s
credit record, credit historgyr credit rating, even whereduinformation is accurate and
not obsolete;

3. Any Person’s ability to improve otherwise affect a consumer’s credit
record, credit history, credit ratj, or ability to obtain credit;

4. Any aspect of any mortgage loan modification servidereclosure relief
service, including, but not limited to, the amoaohsavings or reduction in interest rate,
loan principal, or monthly payment that a consumer will receive from purchasing, using,
or enrolling in such mortgage loan modificatiservice or foreclosure relief service; the

amount of time before a consumer will re@ea&v mortgage loan modification or relief



from foreclosure; the likelihood that a consemwill obtain a modified mortgage loan or
relief from foreclosure; or the redumn or cessation afollection calls; and
5. That a consumer will receive legal representation; and
B. Advertising or assisting others invadtising credit terms other than those terms
that actually are or will be arrangjer offered by a creditor or lender.
\Y2

PROHIBITED PRACTICES RELATING TO
ANY PRODUCTS OR SERVICES

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Stipulating Defendants, and their officers, agents,
servants, employees, attorneysd all other Persons in active cent or participation with any
of them, who receive actual nci of this Order by personal se® or otherwise, whether acting
directly or through any trust, corporationytoership, limited liabilitycompany, subsidiary,
division, or other device, inotinection with the advertising, mk&ting, promotion, offering for
sale or sale of any product sgrvice, are permanentlysteained and enjoined from
misrepresenting or assisting othé misrepresenting, expresslyby implication, any material
fact, including but not limited to:

A. Any material aspect of the natweterms of any reind, cancellation, exchange,
or repurchase policy, including, but not limitedttee likelihood of a consumer obtaining a full
or partial refund, or the circumstances in whactull or partial refund Wl be granted to the
consumer;

B. That any Person is affiliated with, endorsed or approved by, or otherwise
connected to any other Person, government eptifgublic, non-profit, oother non-commercial
program, or any other program;

C. The total costs to purchase, receorajse, or the quantity of, the product, or



service;
D. Any material restriction, limitation, a@ondition on purchasing, receiving, or
using the product or service; and
E. Any material aspect of the performanetficacy, nature, or characteristics of the
product or service.
V.

SUBSTANTIATION FOR BENEFIT, PE RFORMANCE, AND EFFICACY CLAIMS

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Stipulating Defendants, and their officers, agents,
servants, employees, attorneysd all other Persons in active cent or participation with any
of them, who receive actual nodi of this Order by personal se® or otherwise, whether acting
directly or through any trust, corporationyipership, limited liabilitycompany, subsidiary,
division, or other device, inoninection with the advertising, mk&ting, promotion, offering for
sale or sale of any product or service, are permanently restramd enjoined from making any
representation or assisting athé making any representari, expressly or by implication,
about the benefits, performance, or efficacamf product or service, unless, at the time such
representation is made, Stiptihg Defendants possess and ghpn competent and reliable

evidence that substantiates that the representation is true.

VI.
MONETARY JUDGMENT
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that:
A. Judgment in the amount of nine million nine hundred thirty-nine thousand three

hundred eighty-eight and 49/100 Dollars ($9,388.49) is hereby entered in favor of the

Commission against Stipulating Defendants, jointly and seveeallgguitable monetary relief.

10



This amount is due and payable to the Cassion or its designated agent immediately.

B. The judgment set forth in paragraph Atk Section shall be partially satisfied
by any funds turned over to the Commissiot®designated agent by Independant Resources
Network Corp. also d/b/a IRN Raent Systems in this actioRederal Trade Commission v.
Innovative Wealth Builders, Inc., et al., Civ. No. 8:13-cv-123-T-33EAJ (M.D. Fla.).

C. StipulatingDefendantselinquish dominion and all legaind equitable right, title,
and interest in all Assets trarsfed pursuant to this Order améy not seek the return of any
Assets.

D. The facts alleged in the Complaint will taken as true, without further proof, in
any subsequent civil litigation lyr on behalf of the Commigsi, including in a proceeding to
enforce its rights to any payment or monejadgment pursuant to ihOrder, such as a
nondischargeability complaiimt any bankruptcy case.

E. The facts alleged in the Complaint es&ball elements necessary to sustain an
action by the Commission pursuaotSection 523(a)(2A) of the Bankruptcy Code, 11 U.S.C.
8 523(a)(2)(A), and this Order will have ctral estoppel effect for such purposes.

F. Stipulating Defendants acknowledge tnetir Taxpayer Iddification Numbers
(Social Security Numbers or Eroyer Identification Numbersyvhich Stipulating Defendants
previously submitted to the Commission, nteeyused for collecting and reporting on any
delinquent amount arising out of thisder, in accordance with 31 U.S.C. 8§ 7701.

G. All money paid to the Commission pursutmthis Order may be deposited into a
fund administered by theommission or its designee to beddgor equitable relief, including
consumer redress and any attendant expens#sefadministration of any redress fund. If a

representative of the Commissioacttes that direct redress twnsumers is wholly or partially

11



impracticable or money remains after redress is completed, thenSsion may apply any
remaining money for such other equitable rdiietluding consumer inforation remedies) as it
determines to be reasonably related tpugating Defendants’ préces alleged in the
Complaint. Any money not usedrfsuch equitable relief is to lskeposited to the U.S. Treasury
as disgorgement. Stipulating f2adants have no right to dlemge any actions the Commission
or its representatives may taersuant to this Subsection.

VII.

PROHIBITIONS REGARDING CONSUMER INFORMATION

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Stipulating Defendants, and their officers, agents,
servants, employees, attorneysd all other Persons in active @ant or participation with any
of them who receive actual me# of this Order by personal service or otherwise, are
permanently restrained and enjoined from:

A. Failing to provide sufficient customarformation to enable the Commission to
efficiently administer consumer redresdip@lating Defendants repsent that they have
provided this redress information to the Consiua. If a representat of the Commission
requests in writing any informatiarlated to redress, Stipulatibgfendants must provide it, in
the form prescribed by the Consgion, within fourteen (14) days;

B. Disclosing, using, or benefitting froomstomer information, including the name,
address, telephone number, email address, sszatity number, other identifying information,
or any data that enables access to a customertsunt (including, but not limited to, a credit
card, bank account, or other financial accountgrof Person which any Stipulating Defendant
obtained prior to entry of this @er in connection witlthe marketing or sale of any Debt Relief

Product or Service; and

12



C. Failing to dispose of such custorimdormation in all forms in their possession,
custody, or control within thirty30) days after receipt of wten direction to do so from a
representative of the Commission. Disposal ¢f&alby means that protect against unauthorized
access to the customer information, suchyaburning, pulverizing, or shredding any papers,
and by erasing or destroying aglgctronic media, to ensure that the customer information
cannot practicably be read or reconstructed.

Provided, however, that customer information need not be disposed of, and may be
disclosed, to the extent requested by a governagaticy or required by a law, regulation, or
court order.

VIII.

PROHIBITION ON COLLECTING ON ACCOUNTS

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Stipulating Defendants, and their officers, agents,
servants, employees, attorneysd all other Persons in active cent or participation with any
of them who receive aailinotice of this Order by persorsdrvice or otherwise, whether acting
directly, or through any trust, corporationytp@&rship, limited liabilitycompany, subsidiary,
division, or other device, are peanently restrained and enjethfrom attempting to collect,
collecting, or assigning any rigtd collect payment from any consumer who purchased or
agreed to purchase any Détlief Product or Service froany Stipulating Defendant.

IX.

ORDER ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Stipulating Defendants obtain acknowledgments of
receipt of this Order:

A. Each Stipulating Defendant, within sey@) days of entry of this Order, must

13



submit to the Commission an acknowledgmentecegipt of this Order sworn under penalty of
perjury.

B. For five (5) years after entry of tidrder, each Individual Defendant for any
business that she, individually or collectively wathy other Defendants, is the majority owner or
controls directly or indirectlyand the Corporate Defendant, mudivée a copy of this Order to:

(1) all principals, officers, directors, and LiiGanagers and members; (2) all employees, agents,
and representatives who particat conduct related to the subjetatter of the Order; and (3)
any business entity resulting from any changstincture as set forth in the Section titled
Compliance Reporting. Delivery must occur witkeven (7) days of entry of this Order for
current personnel. For all others, delivery nogstur before they assume their responsibilities.

C. From each individual or entity to which a Stipulating Defendant delivered a copy
of this Order, that Stipulating Defendant mabktain, within thirty (30days, a signed and dated
acknowledgment of receipt of this Order.

X.

COMPLIANCE REPORTING

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Stipulating Defendants make timely submissions to
the Commission:
A. One (1) year after entry of this Ordeach Stipulating Defendant must submit a
compliance report, sworn under penalty of perjury.
1. Each Stipulating Defendant ntuga) identify the primary physical,
postal, and email address and telephone ngraBalesignated posbf contact, which
representatives of the Commission mag tetscommunicate with each Stipulating

Defendant; (b) identify all of that Stipuiag Defendant’s businesses by all of their

14



names, telephone numbers, and physical, pastajl, and Internet addresses; (c)
describe the activities of each businessluiding the goods and services offered, the
means of advertising, marketing, and sades] the involvement of any other Defendant
(which Individual Defendants must describthey know or should know due to their
own involvement); (d) describe in detail whet and how that Stipulating Defendant is in
compliance with each Section of this Ordend (e) provide a copy of each Order
Acknowledgment obtained pursuant to this @ydeless previously submitted to the
Commission.

2. Additionally, each Individual Defendant must: (a) identify all telephone
numbers and all physical, postal, email andrhtaddresses, including all residences;
(b) identify all business activities, includingyabusiness for which she performs services
whether as an employee or otherwise amdentity in which she has any ownership
interest; and (c) describe in detail her invohant in each such business, including title,
role, responsibilities, participation, authority, aehtand any ownership.

B. For twenty (20) years following entof this Order, each Stipulating Defendant
must submit a compliance notice, sworn under pemédlperjury, within fourteen (14) days of
any change in the following:

1. Each Stipulating Defendant must report any chang@ijnany designated
point of contact; or (b) thstructure of any Corporate [Bmdant or any entity that
Stipulating Defendant has any owsleip interest in or controldirectly or ndirectly that
may affect compliance obligations arising unttes Order, including: creation, merger,
sale, or dissolution of the entity or any sulesig, parent, or affiliate that engages in any

acts or practices subject to this Order.

15



2. Additionally, each Individual Defendant must report any change in: (a)
name, including aliases or ficbtis name, or residence addresdb) title or role in any
business activity, including any business for whsbe performs services whether as an
employee or otherwise and any entitynhich she has any ownership interest, and
identify the name, physical address, and lagrnet address of ¢hbusiness or entity.

C. Each Stipulating Defendant mgsiomit to the Commission notice of the
filing of any bankruptcy petition, insolvencyqmeeding, or similar proceeding by or against
such Stipulating Defendant withifourteen (14) daysf its filing.

D. Any submission to the Commissiomugred by this Order to be sworn under
penalty of perjury must be true and accueatd comply with 28 U.S.C. § 1746, such as by
concluding: “I declare under pdhaof perjury under the laws dhe United States of America
that the foregoing is true and correct. Exedwn: " and supplyirtbe date, signatory’s
full name, title (if applicable), and signature.

E. Unless otherwise directed by anaission representative in writing, all
submissions to the Commission pursuant to@rer must be emailed to DEbrief@ftc.gov or
sent by overnight courier (not theS. Postal Service) to: Assate Director for Enforcement,
Bureau of Consumer Protection, Federaldg Commission, 600 Pennsylvania Avenue NW,
Washington, DC 20580. The subject line musfitve FTC v. Innovative Wealth Builders, Inc.,
et al. (X130023).

XI.

RECORDKEEPING

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Stipulating Defendants must create certain records

for twenty (20) years after entry of the Orderd aetain each such record for five (5) years.
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Specifically, Corporate Defendant and each Irdilial Defendant for any business in which she,
individually or collectively withany other Defendant, is a majoraiyvner or controls directly or
indirectly, must create amétain the following records:

A. accounting records showing the reues from all goods or services sold;

B. personnel records showing, for eachspe providing services, whether as an
employee or otherwise, that person’s: nandeyasses, and telephone numbers; job title or
position; dates of service; and (if applicable) the reason for termination;

C. records of all consumer complaintiaefund requests, whether received directly
or indirectly, such as throughtlaird party, and any response;

D. all records necessary to demonstfalieccompliance with each provision of this
Order, including all submissins to the Commission; and

E. a copy of each unique advertisement or other marketing material.

XIlI.

COMPLIANCE MONITORING

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that, for the purpose of monitoring Stipulating
Defendants’ compliance with this Order, and any failw transfer any assets as required by this
Order:

A. Within fourteen (14) days of receipt a written request from a representative of
the Commission, each Stipulatibgfendant must: submit additional compliance reports or other
requested information, which must be sworn unmmalty of perjuryappear for depositions;
and produce documents, for inspection and eapyiThe Commission is also authorized to
obtain discovery, without further leave of cows$jng any of the procedures prescribed by

Federal Rules of Civil Procedure 29, 30 [iming telephonic depositions), 31, 33, 34, 36, 45,

17



and 69.

B. For matters concerning this Ordee thommission is authorized to communicate
directly with each Stipulating Defendant. Stipulating Defendant must permit representatives of
the Commission to interview any employeether person affiliated with any Stipulating
Defendant who has agreed to such an intervi€he person interviewed may have counsel
present.

C. The Commission may use all othewfial means, including posing, through its
representatives, as consumeigypliers, or other individuslor entitiesto Stipulating
Defendants or any individual or entity affiéa with Stipulating Defendants, without the
necessity of identification or pmniaotice. Nothing in this Order limits the Commission’s lawful
use of compulsory process, puant to Sections 9 and 20tbé FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. 88 49, 57b-
1.

XIII.

COOPERATION WITH FTC COUNSEL

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Stipulating Defendants shall, in connection with this
action or any subsequent investigns related to or associateith the transactions or the
occurrences that are the subject of the FTC@aint, cooperate in good faith with the FTC
and appear, or cause their officag)ployees, representatives, oemiy to appear, at such places
and times as the FTC shall reasonably request,\afiten notice, for interviews, conferences,
pretrial discovery, review afocuments, and for such other matters as may be reasonably
requested by the FTC. If reqied in writing by the FTC, Situlating Defendants shall appear,
or cause their officers, employees, representgtimeagents to appear, and provide truthful

testimony in any trial, deposition, or other peeding related to associated with the
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transactions or the occurrendbat are the subject of the Complaint, without the service of a
subpoena.
XIV.

CONTINUATION OF RECEIVERSHIP

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the appointment of Mark J. BerastReceiver over
the Receivership Defendant pursuant to Sectibhd? the Preliminary Injunction Order entered
on January 25, 2013, is hereby continued in fultéaand effect until furthreorder by the Court.

XV.

DISSOLUTION OF ASSET FREEZE

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the freeze on the AssefsCarly Janene Pelland
a/k/a Carly Zurita; Tamara Dawlohnson; and Sheryl Leigh Lemn pursuant to the Preliminary
Injunction entered in this action shall be liftecbagentry of this Order. The freeze on the Assets
of the Corporate Defendant shall remain in @fientil further order by the Court. A financial
institution shall be entitled to rely upon &és from Plaintiff stahg that the freeze on
Stipulating Defendant#Assets has been lifted.
XVI.

SEVERABILITY

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the provisions of it Order are separate and
severable from one another. ffyaprovision is stayed or deterreih to be invalid, the remaining

provisions shall remain in full force and effect.
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XVII.

JURISDICTION

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that this Court shall retain jurisdiction of this matter for
purposes of construction, modificaticand enforcement of this Order.

DONE andORDERED in Chambers, in Tampa, Florida, this @ity of September,
2013.

Vom0 Msenerlty Co.

VIRGINIA M. HERNANDEZ/COVINGTON
UNITED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE

Copies to: All counsel of record
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